
Page 1 of 7 

CONFIRMED BY CHAIR  
 

 
 

 

 

SENATE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 1 MARCH 2023 
AT 2PM IN HARDY, SEMINAR ROOM 1 

 

 
Members Rev Canon Professor Peter Neil Vice-Chancellor (Chair) 
 Professor Scott Fleming 

Dr Stephanie Gilluly 
Dr Robert Boast 
Dr Nick Gee 
Dr Sacha Mason 
 
Dr Caroline Horton 
Dr Jack Cunningham 
Dr Andrew Jackson 
Connor Short 
Emily Allden 
Robyn Jackaman 
 

Deputy Vice-Chancellor 
Registrar and University Secretary 
Pro Vice-Chancellor (Students) 
Dean of Faculty 
Academic Staff Member of University Council and Head of 
Programmes: Education, Health and Lifelong Learning 
Professoriate/Reader Representative 
Professoriate/Reader Representative 
Head of Research 
Students’ Union President, 2022/23 
Students’ Union Vice President, Education 2022/23 
Doctoral/Postgraduate Student Representative 
 

 Faculty Representation 
Dr Matt Dunn 
Dr Clare Wheat-Gooing 
Stefan Fusenich 
 

 
Head of Programmes: Initial Teacher Education 
Member of Academic Staff from the Faculty 
Member of Academic Staff from the Faculty 

Minutes Leanne Chancellor Secretariat, Graduation & Governance Manager 
 

 
The Chair thanked members for their attendance at the third Senate meeting of the academic year 2022/23. 
 
1.  Apologies 

 
 

1.1 Apologies were received from: 
• Janet Atkinson, Member of Academic Staff from the Faculty. 
• Steven Senrasan, Undergraduate Student Representative. 

 
The Chair welcomed the following new members to their first Senate meeting: 

• Stefan Fusenich, Member of Academic Staff from the Faculty. 
• Robyn Jackaman, Doctoral/Postgraduate Student Representative. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 

Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Senate – 19 October 2022 
The minutes of the Senate meeting held on 19 October 2022 were CONFIRMED as a fair 
and accurate record, and the Chair was authorised to sign them. 
 
It was NOTED that the meeting scheduled for December 2022 was cancelled. 

 



Page 2 of 7 

   
3. Matters Arising 

 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
3.1.1 

Action Table – 19 October 2022 
Senate RECEIVED an updated action table from the meeting on 19 October 2022 and 
NOTED the following: 
 
Terms of Reference and Membership for 2022/23 (Refers to minute 4.1 and 4.3) 
It was NOTED that full student representation was now fulfilled for Senate this academic 
year and the Terms of Reference were updated with the amendments suggested at Senate 
on 19 October 2023. 
 

 

3.2 
 
3.2.1 
 

Any Other Matters 
 
ITT Reaccreditation Update: 
The Head of Programmes: Initial Teacher Education noted that the meeting with the 
Department for Education (DfE) Associate had taken place and a milestone of May 2023 
has been set to present three pieces of evidence in terms of our readiness to deliver in 
2024. 
 

 

4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 

UCU Industrial Action Business Continuity Group (BCG) Update 
 
The Deputy Vice-Chancellor (DVC) NOTED that the University Communications regarding 
the UCU Industrial Strike Action over the past few weeks and highlighted the following: 
 

• Following the first wave of Industrial Action in November 2022, UCU have 
announced the intention to take strike action over 18 days during February and 
March 2023, with the first day being 1 February 2023. 

• For this recent round, the BCG used the same procedure used in November 2022 
for communications to students and staff, the sign in procedure and monitoring 
undelivered teaching. 

• On the first day of strike action, 25 of the 32 sessions (78%) were delivered as 
planned and there were no student groups left unattended. 

• The four key UCU themes for the Industrial Action were: 
1. Pay, which is managed under collective bargaining. 
2. Casualisation of the workforce. 
3. Workload. 
4. Gender equality. 

• Following dialogue with branch representatives of UCU, and in recognition of 
progress and willingness to continue, the branch cancelled the action that had 
been planned for during the second week for work to continue on workload 
allocation and casualisation.  

• At the announcement of the 18 days of action, BCG was concerned about the 
number of days when the Industrial Action may affect module delivery – five 
Wednesdays, five Thursdays and four Tuesdays. 

• It was noted that there has been no further Industrial Action since the first week 
and the national UCU cancelled action on the fourth and fifth weeks. 

• The disruption to students currently has been minimal. 
 
The DVC gave thanks to the members of BCG and UCU for how they have handled the 
messaging going out to students to ensure they have not had their learning disrupted. 
 

 



Page 3 of 7 

4.3 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

4.5 
 
 
 

4.6 
 
 
 

4.7 

The DVC NOTED that work continues to make progress on the Workload Allocation Model 
(WAM) and the hourly paid lecturers’ arrangements.  It was NOTED that a further 
consultation exercise is to be scheduled as the second draft of the WAM was currently 
with UCU representatives.  
 
The Chair NOTED that he thought an additional day had just been added to the Industrial 
Action days of 15 March 2023. 
 
The Head of Research NOTED that due to the planned Industrial Action days, his team was 
encountering issues with Vivas that had been scheduled/due to be scheduled as External 
Examiners are involved in the strike action. 
 
The Chair COMMENDED the work that had been completed lead by the DVC and BCG, and 
also the Registrar & University Secretary (R&US) with the Operations Group to ensure that 
the student experience is as undisrupted as possible. 
 
The Chair also gave THANKS to UCU with how they are engaging with the University and 
trying to come to some solutions. 
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 

5.3 
 
 

5.4 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 

To Receive and Note the Final Teaching Excellence Framework (TEF) Submission 
 
Members RECEIVED and NOTED BGU’s final TEF submission which was submitted on 24 
January 2023. 
 
The Chair NOTED that the final draft TEF submissions was received by the University 
Council’s Academic Assurance Committee on 18 January 2023, who NOTED that it told the 
story of BGU and was an open and honest document. 
 
The Chair gave THANKS to Pro Vice-Chancellor (Students) (PVC) and the TEF Working 
Group for their work in pulling the submission together. 
 
The Chair also gave THANKS to the Students’ Union Vice President, Education (SUVP), for 
her work on the Student TEF submission, which was noted was optional. 
 
The Chair ENQUIRED where the Student TEF submission would be presented, as it would 
be regrettable if the hard work which had been led by the SUVP were not to be available 
for colleagues to read. 

o The R&US NOTED that it would be the decision of the Students’ Union how they 
would like to publicise it (should they wish to), it is not a document that would 
come through the University’s deliberative committees. 

o It was suggested that the Student TEF submission could be noted at the Learning 
& Teaching Committee for a lessons learnt exercise. 

o The DVC NOTED that there was a requirement for BGU’s TEF document to be 
published on the website once the outcome is known, could the student 
submission go on the student website also? 
- The Students’ Union President (SUP) confirmed that this would be possible 

and noted that conversations had already taken place about this and match it 
with a social media campaign to better advertise the work that has been 
completed on it. 

 
The PVC NOTED that the TEF outcome results should be published by the end of July/early 
August 2023. 

 



Page 4 of 7 

6. 
 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.1.1 
 
 
 

6.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 

6.1.3 
 
6.2 

 
 
 
 
 

6.2.1 

To Approve the Following Proposed Programme Closures and Suspensions Following the 
Meeting of the Portfolio Management Group (PMG) on 24 February 2023 
 
Members RECEIVED and NOTED the proposal forms to suspend the following 
programmes: 

• BSc (Hons) Education Studies and Mathematics with Foundation Year (for a further 
two years) 

• BSc (Hons) Sport and Mathematics with Foundation Year (for one further year) 
• BA (Hons) English Language and Teaching with Foundation Year (for one further 

year) 
• MA Professional Practice with Children Young People and Families (for one further 

year) 

• MSc Mental Health Wellbeing and Resilience (for one further year)  
 
The Dean of Faculty NOTED that all the programmes highlighted above are all currently 
suspended and want to continue the suspension to allow them to be reviewed to make 
them a more attractive offer. 
 
The PVC NOTED that the programmes with the Foundation Year have been continued to 
be suspended because recruitment to the direct three-year programmes was low and did 
not want to commit to low numbers coming through the Foundation Year entry.  The 
Foundation Year entry will be reviewed again once there is evidence that the recruitment 
to the direct three-year programme has increased. 
 
Senate APPROVED the SUSPENSIONS of the above five programmes. 
 
Members RECEIVED and NOTED the proposal forms to close the following programmes: 

• MA Professional Studies 
• MA Social and Cultural History 
• PG Cert General Practice Nursing 
• MSc Primary and Community Care 

 
Senate APPROVED the CLOSURES of the above four programmes. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quality  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quality  
 

7. 
 
7.1 
 
 

To Receive and Note – Semester Dates 2023/24 and 2024/25 
 
Members received and noted the Semester dates for 2023/24 and 2024/25, which have 
been approved by the Vice-Chancellor’s Advisory Group (VCAG). 
 

 

8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To Note – Key Decisions from University Council 
 
The Academic Staff Member of University Council, noted the following key items were 
received at the University Council meeting held on 29 November 2022: 
 

• Council received an update on the BGU 2019/25 Strategy and KPI Review. 
• Council approved the Prevent accountability and Data Return 2021/22 for 

submission to the Office for Students (OfS). 
• Council received and approved the 2022/2023 budget and forecast outturn and 

the 5-year financial forecasts for 2022/23 to 2026/27. 
• Council received the BG (Lincoln) Ltd accounts for 2021/22. 
• Council received the Audit Committees Annual Report 2021/22. 

 



Page 5 of 7 

 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
8.5 

• Council received approved the University Annual Report, Accounts for 2021/22, 
Statements of Corporate Governance and Internal Controls. 

• Council received the draft University’s Annual Report 2021. 
 
The Academic Staff Member of University Council, noted the following key items were 
received at the University Council meeting held on 14 December 2022: 
 

• Council approved the University’s Annual Report 2021. 
• Council received an update on the Strategy. 
• Council received an update on BGU’s marketing and branding activities. 
• Council received an overview of safeguarding and prevent. 

 
The Chair NOTED for those members who were not aware, that the University had a new 
Chair of University Council, Anne Frost. 
 
The SUP and SUVP NOTED that the Chair of University Council had attended the last 
Student Council on 6 February 2023. 
 
The DVC NOTED for members information that there were two new University Council 
Committees that had been established following a recent external Governance Review, 
which were the Strategic Oversight Group and Academic Assurance Committee. 
 

9. 
 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
9.2 

Academic Enhancement Committee Approved Policies, Regulations and Codes of 
Practice 
 
Senate RECEIVED, ENDORSED and APPROVED the following Terms and Conditions, which 
had been recommended and endorsed by AEC. 
 

• Graduation Terms and Conditions. 
 
The Chair NOTED and was delighted to announce that Leanne Chancellor, Secretariat, 
Graduation and Governance Manager and Craig Ferguson, Graduation and Governance 
Officer had taken over all the aspects and arrangements of Graduation. 
 

 

10. 
 
10.1 
 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
 
 
10.3 

Records of Decisions 
 
Institutional Approval for ICON College of Technology and Management 
Senate RECEIVED and NOTED the Record of Decision for the institutional approval for 
ICON College of Technology and Management. 
 
Programme Validation for BA (Hons) Business Studies and BA (Hons) Business Studies with 
Foundation Year 
Senate RECEIVED and NOTED the Programme Validation for BA (Hons) Business Studies 
and BA (Hons) Business Studies with Foundation Year. 
 
Programme Approval for ICON College of Technology and Management for BA (Hons) 
Business Studies and BA (Hons) Business Studies with Foundation Year 
It was NOTED that some outstanding paperwork from ICON was still waiting to be 
received, which was expected to be resolved by 3 March 2023. 
 
The DVC NOTED that this had been an outstanding effort from the University to pull this 
together without losing any rigour and robustness in the process – it has been an 

 



Page 6 of 7 

accelerated set of arrangements.  It was NOTED that an enormous amount of work had 
been completed by the Faculty and the Quality Office to get this partnership to this stage. 
 

11. 
 
11.1 
 

Minutes of Meetings of Subcommittees of Senate 
 
Academic Enhancement Committee held on 8 February 2023 
Senate RECEIVED and NOTED the minutes from the Academic Enhancement Committee 
meeting held on 8 February 2023. 
 
The DVC NOTED that the outcome of the AEC meeting in February would be the Academic 
Health of the Institution Report (AHIR), which was currently in drafting phase.  It was 
noted that the draft AHIR would be presented and scrutinised at the University Council’s 
Academic Assurance Committee on 14 March 2023 before being recommended for 
approval at University Council on 22 November 2023, along with the Degree Outcome 
Statement which will be published. 
 
The DVC NOTED that he was impressed this academic year with the quality and work put 
into completing the Annual Monitoring Reports. 
 

 

11.2 
 

People and Inclusion Committee held on 23 February 2023 
Senate RECEIVED and NOTED the minutes from the People and Inclusion Committee 
meeting held on 23 February 2023 
 

 

11.3 Access and Participation Committee held on 6 December 2022 
Senate RECEIVED and NOTED the minutes from the Access and Participation Committee 
meeting held on 6 December 2022 
 
The PVC NOTED that the consultation has happened for Access and Participation Plan 
(APP), and they will be reporting back at the end of March 2023.  It was NOTED that there 
was an indication that that new APP will have a pilot phase – the PVC proposed that BGU 
did not go forward for the pilot phase and this time and let other institutions go first. 
 
The PVC NOTED that the Access and Participation Committee would address the new 
2025/26 four-year plan. 

 

   
12. 
 
12.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12.2 
 

 

Any Other Business  
 
Honorary Awards Update 
The Chair NOTED that the Honorary Awards Committee met on 14 February 2023 to 
review the nominations put forward for this academic year’s Honorary Doctorate and 
Fellowship Awards. 
 
It was NOTED that once acceptances had been received by the Graduation Office, 
announcements would be made officially. 
 
New Regulatory Framework on  
The R&US made members aware that there was a new OfS consultation on a new 
approach to regulating harassment and sexual misconduct in English higher education. 
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.officeforstudents.org.uk%2fpublications%2fcons
ultation-on-a-new-approach-to-regulating-harassment-and-sexual-misconduct-in-english-higher-
education%2f&c=E,1,OdoRH9Ve7FJh-QOjMibD8m2dF_JQrfYiNWzz-
E9ELVCzGlHR8U1eFxeqYypBSXL52jjyCX3HRzE8qYXOs22e5MqMcuJiloHDaUpL0anyBw8cWcxv&typo=1  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.officeforstudents.org.uk%2fpublications%2fconsultation-on-a-new-approach-to-regulating-harassment-and-sexual-misconduct-in-english-higher-education%2f&c=E,1,OdoRH9Ve7FJh-QOjMibD8m2dF_JQrfYiNWzz-E9ELVCzGlHR8U1eFxeqYypBSXL52jjyCX3HRzE8qYXOs22e5MqMcuJiloHDaUpL0anyBw8cWcxv&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.officeforstudents.org.uk%2fpublications%2fconsultation-on-a-new-approach-to-regulating-harassment-and-sexual-misconduct-in-english-higher-education%2f&c=E,1,OdoRH9Ve7FJh-QOjMibD8m2dF_JQrfYiNWzz-E9ELVCzGlHR8U1eFxeqYypBSXL52jjyCX3HRzE8qYXOs22e5MqMcuJiloHDaUpL0anyBw8cWcxv&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.officeforstudents.org.uk%2fpublications%2fconsultation-on-a-new-approach-to-regulating-harassment-and-sexual-misconduct-in-english-higher-education%2f&c=E,1,OdoRH9Ve7FJh-QOjMibD8m2dF_JQrfYiNWzz-E9ELVCzGlHR8U1eFxeqYypBSXL52jjyCX3HRzE8qYXOs22e5MqMcuJiloHDaUpL0anyBw8cWcxv&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.officeforstudents.org.uk%2fpublications%2fconsultation-on-a-new-approach-to-regulating-harassment-and-sexual-misconduct-in-english-higher-education%2f&c=E,1,OdoRH9Ve7FJh-QOjMibD8m2dF_JQrfYiNWzz-E9ELVCzGlHR8U1eFxeqYypBSXL52jjyCX3HRzE8qYXOs22e5MqMcuJiloHDaUpL0anyBw8cWcxv&typo=1


Page 7 of 7 

The R&US invited members for their comments on the consultation and have responses 
and comments back to her by 29 March 2023. 
 

 
ALL 

 
13. 
 

13.1 

Dates of Future Meeting(s) 
 

• Wednesday 17 May 2023 
 
Item proposals for the next Senate meeting: 

• Research: 
o Invite Senate to see some of the material that went into the recent 

Monitoring Return, which shows the amount of activity that goes on 
within the University, and the material for the narratives and templates to 
KEF3 which would be submitted by the end of March 2023 

 

• For July 2023 – the REF2028 initial decisions – if they have been received. 
 

• New Programmes – the RoDs for the new programmes should be received 
following the Stage 2 events for final approval. 

 
The Chair gave thanks to Senate for their attendance. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AJ/LC 

 
AJ/LC 

 

    
Signed by the Chair: _______________________________  ___17 May 2023________ 
   Revd Canon Professor Peter Neil  Date 


